
CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov 
Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov 

1751 College Avenue Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 Fax (775) 777-7219 

P U B L I C  M E E T I N G  N O T I C E  

The City of Elko Planning Commission will meet in a regular session on Tuesday, November 3, 
2020 beginning at 5:30 P.M., P.S.T. utilizing GoToMeeting.com: 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/928163245 

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Commission. In accordance with 
NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda were posted on the City of Elko Website at 
http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website at https://notice.nv.gov, 
and in the following locations: 

ELKO CITY HALL- 1751  College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: October 27. 2020 

Posted by: Shelb Archuleta Plannin Technician 
Name Title 

The public may contact Shelby Archuleta by phone at (775) 777-7160 or by email at 
sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The 
agenda and supporting material is also available at Elko City Hall, 17 51  College A venue, Elko, 
NV, or on the City website at http://www.elkocity.com. 

The public can view or participate in the virtual meeting on a computer, laptop, tablet or smart 
phone at: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/928163245. You can also dial in using your phone 
at +1 (408) 650-3123. The Access Code for this meeting is 928-163-245. Comments can also be 
emailed to cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov 

Dated this 271h day of October, 2020. 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the City of Elko Planning Department, 1751  College Avenue, Elko, 
Nevada, 89801 or by calling (775) 777-7160. 



CITY OF ELKO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2020 

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
1751 COLLEGE A VENUE, ELKO, NEV ADA 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/ioin/928163245 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Agenda for this meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission has been properly posted 
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements. 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N .R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion 
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as 
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

October 6, 2020 - Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

I. NEW BUSINESS 

A. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

1 .  Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 8-20, filed by BOSA, 
LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Tower Hill Unit 4 involving the 
proposed division of approximately 8.601 acres of property into 5 lots for residential 
development and 1 remainder lot within the Rl (Single Family Residential) Zoning 
District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Subject property is located northeast of Lamoille Highway and south of Stitzel Road. 
(APN 001-929-125) 

2. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Vacation 
No. 4-20, filed by Grace Baptist Church, for the vacation of a 25' wide public utility 
easement bisecting APN 001-610-112 ,  consisting of an area approximately 9,944 sq. 
ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 



The applicant is in the process of selling the parcel to a developer who would prefer 
to have the public easement run along the property line. The applicant will be 
granting a new public utility easement to the City of Elko in lieu of this easement. 

3 .  Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of 
Elko Master Plan, specifically amending the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas 
Map 8 on: 1) six parcels ofland located in the area ofW. Cedar Street and D Street; 
2) APN 001-0lR-004 located on Front Street adjacent to the 5th Street Bridge; and 3) 
APN 110-620-058 located at the northeast comer of Ruby Vista Drive and College 
Parkway, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Recent development applications have revealed some inconsistencies between 
existing Zoning districts and Master Plan designations. The proposed amendment 
cleans up these inconsistencies. 

4. Review, consideration, and possible action to set regular meeting dates as well as 
special meeting dates for 2021, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

II. REPORTS 

A. Summary of City Council Actions. 

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions. 

C. Professional articles, publications, etc. 

1 .  Zoning Bulletin 

D. Miscellaneous Elko County 

E. Training 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N .R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion 
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as 
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda 
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another 
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to 
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 

ADJOURNMENT 



Respectfully submitted, 

�� 
City Planner 



CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2020

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/223862189

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Jeff Dalling
Tera Hooiman
Stefan Beck
Gratton Miller
Giovanni Puccinelli

Absent: John Anderson
Vacancy

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Matthew Griego, Fire Chief
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

September 1, 2020 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the Minutes dated September 1, 2020.

Moved by Gratton Miller, seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

I. NEW BUSINESS



A. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Parcel Map
8-20, filed by Gallagher Family Trust. The parcel map creates one parcel from two
existing parcels and contains an offer of dedication for right-of-way for a portion of
Norco Lane. Due to the dedication, it is referred to the Planning Commission with
recommendation to the City Council, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

The parcel map creates one parcel from two parcels owned by the applicant,
Gallagher Family Trust. The map will be dedicating a portion of Norco Lane to the
City of Elko.

Casey Gallagher, Gallagher Ford, explained that they were looking to combine the two parcels at
the dealership and dedicate a portion of Norco Lane back to the City.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated September 22,
2020. Staff recommended conditional approval with the findings and conditions listed in the staff
report.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, stated that the Engineering Department had no additional
comments and recommended conditional approval.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, had no comments or concerns.

Matt Griego, Fire Chief, had no additional comments and recommended conditional approval.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, recommended approval as presented by staff.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve Parcel
Map No. 8-20 with the conditions listed in the City of Elko Staff Report dated September
22, 2020, listed as follows:

1. Prior to map recordation, a note shall be added to the map requiring the completion
of sidewalk improvements along 30th Street with any future development or site
improvement.

2. The Parcel Map shall be recorded by Elko County within two (2) years of this
approval.

3. Revise the Parcel Map to show original property lines prior to City sign-off.

Commissioner Puccinelli’s findings to support the motion were the parcel map conforms
with the City of Elko Master Plan Transportation and Land Use Components, the City of
Elko Wellhead Protection Plan, and City of Elko Code Sections 2-13-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-10(B), 3-
8, and 3-3-24, and 3-3-28.



Moved by Giovanni Puccinelli, seconded by Gratton Miller

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that on September 8th the City Council accepted the resignation of
Commissioner Evi Buell. The two letters of interest for the open position will be reviewed
with City Council on October 13th. On the September 22nd meeting the Council approved
a parcel map to create a 2,800 sq. ft. parcel that is along the river, which is to be sold to
Safelink for their fiber infrastructure. They also approved Rezone 1-20 for the Fire Station
on South 9th Street and also rezone 5-20 for Legion Construction and Development for the
18 townhomes up North 5th Street. After a very long public hearing the City Council upheld
the Planning Commission’s decision to deny CUP 3-20 for Ruby Mountain Acton Academy.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

Ms. Laughlin reported that the appeal basis for CUP 3-20 was on some of the errors that
were made in that Planning Commission Meeting. Ms. Laughlin pointed out that she
included some training in the agenda packet on findings. She wanted everyone to review
that. It was one of the errors in the meeting. Ms. Buell made the motion to deny, but didn’t
include any findings to back up the denial.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.



Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1. 

Created on 10/20/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 8-20, filed by BDSA, 

LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Tower Hill Unit 4 involving the 

proposed division of approximately 8.601 acres of property into 5 lots for residential 

development and 1 remainder lot within the R1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning 

District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  November 3, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located northeast of Lamoille Highway 

and south of Stitzel Road. (APN 001-929-125) 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council accept, on behalf of the 

public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with 

the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with 

the tentative map; that the City Council approve the agreement to install 

improvements in accordance with the approved construction plans that satisfies the 

requirements of Title 2 Chapter 3, and conditionally approve Final Map 8-20 with 

findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report dated October 20, 2020. 

 
9. Findings: See Staff Report dated October 20, 2020 

 
10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

 
1. Agenda Distribution:  BDSA, LLC 

Attn: Scott Macritchie 

312 Four Mile Trail 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

High Desert Engineering 

Attn: Tom Ballew 

640 Idaho Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

 





Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: October 20, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: November 3, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.1.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Final Map 8-20
APPLICANT: BDSA, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Tower Hill Phase 4

A Final Map for the division of approximately 8.601 acres into 5 lots for residential
development and 1 remainder lot within an R1 (Single Family Residential) zoning district.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Final Map 8-20
Tower Hill Phase 4

Page 2 of 8

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-929-125

PARCEL SIZE: 8.601 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R1) Single-Family Residential.

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

BACKGROUND:

1. The Final Map for Tower Hill Phase 4 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Tower Hill Phase 4 Tentative Map.

3. The City Council conditionally approved the Tower Hill Phase 4 Tentative Map on
August 25, 2020.

4. The subdivision is located on APN 001-929-125.
5. The proposed subdivision consists of 5 residential lots and a remainder lot.
6. The total subdivided area is approximately 8.601 acres.
7. The proposed density is 1.72 units per acre.
8. Approximately 0.233 acres are offered for dedication for street development.
9. Drainage and utility easements are provided along all lot lines.
10. The property is located northeast of Lamoille Highway and south of Stitzel Road.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North: Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential (R) / Developed
 South: General Agriculture / Vacant
 East: Elko County / Scattered Single-Family Residences
 West: General Commercial (C) / Vacant
 Planned Commercial (PC) / Vacant

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The site abuts previous residential development to the north and northwest, vacant

agriculture property to the south, vacant commercial property to the west, and partially
developed residential property to the east outside City limits.

 The parcel slopes down to Lamoille Highway.  The slope has been incorporated into the
tentative map design.

 The property will be accessed by Deerfield Way, to be developed as part of Tower Hill
Unit 3 (public improvements being installed at this time).



Final Map 8-20
Tower Hill Phase 4

Page 3 of 8

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-7 Final Map State (Stage III)
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-8 Content and Format of Final Map Submittal
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-9 to 3-3-16 (Inclusive) Subdivision Design Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-17 to 3-3-22 (Inclusive) Public Improvements/

Guarantees
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 Zoning Code

Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review and
approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review
and approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located outside of any capture zone for City of Elko wells.  Development of the
site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street drainage will be
directed to a storm sewer system.

As the project is designed, it does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE III):

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) – The Final Map is in conformance with the zone
requirements.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) – The proposed Final Map conforms to the Tentative
Map.



Final Map 8-20
Tower Hill Phase 4

Page 4 of 8

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Content – The Final Map conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The Final Map identifies the subdivision and provides its location by section,

township, range, and county.
2. The Final Map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The Final Map provides a scale, north arrow, and date of preparation.

C. Survey Data
1. The boundaries of the subdivision are fully balanced and closed.
2. Any exceptions are noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map is tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of

the subdivision are noted on the Final Map.
D. Descriptive Data

1. The name, right-of-way lines, courses, lengths, and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the Final Map.

2. All drainage ways are noted on the Final Map.
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the Final Map.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels, and exceptions are shown on the

Final Map.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the Final Map.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the Final Map.
7. The locations of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the Final Map with required

information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements

and right-of-ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged with space to be certified by a

notary public.
F. Additional Information

1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the Final Map.
2. The centerline and width of each right-of-way is noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine

the boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the Final Map.
5. The Final Map is located adjacent to a city boundary, which is shown on the Final

Map.
6. The Final Map identifies the location of the section lines nearest the property.

G. City to Check
1. Closure calculations have been provided. Civil improvement plans have been

approved. Drainage plans have been approved.  An engineer’s estimate has been
provided.



Final Map 8-20
Tower Hill Phase 4

Page 5 of 8

2. The lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required Certifications

1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right-of-ways shown on the Final

Map.
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the Final Map, certifying the signature of the City

Council.
4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the Final

Map.
5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map and provides the required

language.
6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided

with the required language.
8. The engineer of record has submitted the Tentative Map and construction plans to

the state, but no written approval has been received.
9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the Final Map

with the required language.
10. The construction plans identify the required water meters for the subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 THROUGH 3-3-16 (INCLUSIVE)

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-3-17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with this section of City code. The plans have been approved by
City staff.

SECTION 3-3-19 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all permits
in accordance with this section of City code.



Final Map 8-20
Tower Hill Phase 4

Page 6 of 8

SECTION 3-3-20 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with this
section of City code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter, and sidewalk as well as lighting, USPS gang boxes,
paving, and utilities within the Elkhorn Circle right-of-way.

SECTION 3-3-21 AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to this section
of City code.

SECTION 3-3-22 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with this section of City code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), AND 3-2-17

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS

1. The Final Map for Tower Hill Phase 4 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation
Components of the Master Plan.

4. The proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive).

5. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City code.

6. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of
City code.



Final Map 8-20
Tower Hill Phase 4

Page 7 of 8

7. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City code.

8. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans which, having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City code, have been approved by City staff.

9. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City code.

10. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
code.

11. The proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), 3-2-
17, and 3-8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code.  The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code.  In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

2. The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30
days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

4. The Final Map for Tower Hill Phase 4 is approved for 5 residential lots and 1 remainder
lot.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision upon approval
of the Final Map by the City Council.

6. Site disturbance shall not commence prior to approval of the project’s construction plans
by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

7. Site disturbance, including clearing and grubbing, shall not commence prior to the
issuance of a grading permit by the City of Elko.

8. Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

9. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.



Final Map 8-20
Tower Hill Phase 4

Page 8 of 8

10. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works.  The Engineer of Record is to certify that the project
was completed in conformance with the approved plans and specifications.











































Agenda Item # I.A.2.  

Created on 10/20/20  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 4-20, filed by Grace Baptist Church, for the vacation of a 25’ wide 

public utility easement bisecting APN 001-610-112, consisting of an area 

approximately 9,944 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  November 3, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The applicant is in the process of selling the parcel to a 

developer who would prefer to have the public easement run along the property 

line. The applicant will be granting a new public utility easement to the City of Elko 

in lieu of this easement.  CL 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which conditionally approves Vacation No. 4-20 based on facts, findings 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated October 20, 2020. 
 

9. Findings:  See Staff Report dated October 20, 2020. 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Grace Baptist Church 
John Ferricks 

3030 North Fifth Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

tgmd1@citlink.net 

 

 
 

 

 
  

mailto:tgmd1@citlink.net




Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: October 20, 2020
CITY COUNCIL PETITION DATE: October 13, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: November 3, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: Vacation 4-20
APPLICANT: Grace Baptist Church
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: APN 001-610-112

Vacation of a 25’ wide public utility easement bisecting APN 001-610-112

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to APPROVE subject to findings of fact and conditions stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



VACATION 4-20
Grace Baptist Church
APN: 001-610-112

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-112

PARCEL SIZE: 2.756 acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family Multiple Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (MED- RES) Medium Density Residential

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

BACKGROUND:

1. The property is currently undeveloped.
2. The easement was granted by Parcel Map File #439506. The map was signed by both

Grace Baptist Church and the City of Elko.
3. The easement was designed for public sewer for the parcels to the northwest.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North: Agricultural / Undeveloped
East: Residential / Partially developed
South: Residential / Developed
West: Residential / Partially developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is currently undeveloped.
The property has moderate sloping.
The property is lacking public improvements along Dakota Dr. frontage.
The easement doesn’t appear to have any public utilities installed within the existing
easement at this time.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive
City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
City of Elko Code – Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures

NRS 278.479 to 278.480

 Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, if, upon public hearing, the governing
body, or the planning commission, hearing examiner or other designee, if authorized to
take final action by the governing body, is satisfied that the public will not be materially
injured by the proposed vacation, it shall order the street or easement vacated. The



VACATION 4-20
Grace Baptist Church
APN: 001-610-112

Page 3 of 5

governing body, or the planning commission, hearing examiner or other designee, if
authorized to take final action by the governing body, may make the order conditional,
and the order becomes effective only upon the fulfillment of the conditions prescribed

Due to the fact the easement is not currently being used, staff feels that vacating this easement
will not materially injure the public.

MASTER PLAN – Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is a corresponding zoning district for

Medium Density Residential.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

1. The area is accessed from Dakota Drive.
2. Dakota Drive is classified as a Residential local.
3. The property is lacking public improvements along Dakota Dr.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component.

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

 The area is located outside the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO CITY CODE 8-7-3-STREET VACATION PROCEDURE

1. If it is determined by a majority vote of the city council that it is in the best interest of the
city and that no person will be materially injured thereby, the city council, by motion,
may propose the realignment, change, vacation, adjustment or abandonment of any street
or any portion thereof. In addition, any abutting owner desiring the vacation of any street
or easement or portion thereof shall file a petition in writing with the city council and the
city council shall consider said petition as set forth above.

 The City Council accepted the petition at their meeting on October 13, 2020 and
referred the matter to the Planning Commission for further consideration.

2. Except for a petition for the vacation or abandonment of an easement for a public utility
owned or controlled by the city, the petition or motion shall be referred to the planning
commission, which shall report its findings and recommendations thereon to the city
council. The petitioner shall, prior to the consideration of the petition by the planning
commission, pay a filing fee to the city in an amount established by resolution of the city
council and included in the appendix to this code.

 The filing fee was paid by the applicant.

3. Whenever any street, easement or portion thereof is proposed to be vacated or
abandoned, the city council shall notify by certified mail each owner of property abutting
the proposed vacation or abandonment and cause a notice to be published at least once in



VACATION 4-20
Grace Baptist Church
APN: 001-610-112

Page 4 of 5

a newspaper of general circulation in the city setting forth the extent of the proposed
vacation or abandonment and setting a date for public hearing, which date may be not
less than ten (10) days and not more than forty (40) days subsequent to the date the notice
is first published.

4. Order of City Council: Except as provided in subsection E of this section, if, upon public
hearing, the City Council is satisfied that the public will not be materially injured by the
proposed vacation or abandonment, and that it is in the best interest of the city, it shall
order the street vacated or abandoned. The city council may make the order conditional,
and the order shall become effective only upon the fulfillment of the conditions
prescribed.

The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Section 8-7 of
City code. The public will not be materially injured by the vacation as the public utility easement
is not currently being utilized and the applicant is granting a new public utility easement to the
City of Elko.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use
Component.

2. The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan
Transportation component.

3. The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive.

4. The vacation is not materially detrimental to the public.

5. The existing easement contains no public infrastructure (water, sewer, etc.) Vacating this
easement would not result in the need or expense to relocate any pipes, which may then
result in an interruption to service. Therefore, the vacation is not materially detrimental to
the public.

6. The proposed vacation is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

7. The proposed vacation is in conformance with Elko City Code 8-7.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Planning Commission forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt
a resolution which conditionally APPROVES the proposed vacation with the following
conditions included in the resolution:

1. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the vacation.

2. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with regard to
the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is recorded.



VACATION 4-20
Grace Baptist Church
APN: 001-610-112

Page 5 of 5

3. Correct the discrepancy between the legal description and display map in the dimension
that is 397.27' or 397.77 feet.

4. New public utility/drainage easement to be recorded prior to final City Council
consideration of this vacation.





































Agenda Item # I.A.3. 

Created on 10/20/20  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City 

of Elko Master Plan, specifically amending the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas 

Map 8 on: 1) six parcels of land located in the area of W. Cedar Street and D Street; 

2) APN 001-01R-004 located on Front Street adjacent to the 5th Street Bridge; and 3) 

APN 110-620-058 located at the northeast corner of Ruby Vista Drive and College 

Parkway, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
2. Meeting Date: November 3, 2020 

 
3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 
5. Background Information: Recent development applications have revealed some 

inconsistencies between existing Zoning districts and Master Plan designations.  The 

proposed amendment cleans up these inconsistencies. 

 

NRS Section 278.210(5) allows Master Plans to be amended up to four times a year.  

This amendment is the third in 2020. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Staff Report 
 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to initiate an amendment to the City of Elko Master Plan 

and direct staff to bring the item back as a resolution and public hearing. 
 

9. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 
 

10. Agenda Distribution: N/A 





Page 1 of 13

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: October 20, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: November 3, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.3.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Master Plan Amendment 3-20

An initiation of an amendment to the City of Elko Master Plan, specifically amending the Proposed
Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on: 1) six parcels of land located in the area of W. Cedar Street and
D Street; 2) APN 001-01R-004 located on Front Street adjacent to the 5th Street Bridge; and 3) APN
110-620-058 located at the northeast corner of Ruby Vista Drive and College Parkway.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

INITIATE the proposed Master Plan Amendment and direct staff to bring the item back as a resolution
and public hearing.

PROPOSED CHANGE #1

BACKGROUND

A code enforcement complaint was received by the City regarding a parcel on W. Cedar Street. During
the process of resolving the complaint, it was discovered that the current zoning of the property,
General Commercial, is not a corresponding zoning for the existing Master Plan designation of
Residential – Medium Density.

A Master Plan Amendment was determined to be needed because the Master Plan requires that the
zoning of individual parcels conform with the Master Plan land use designation.  As a general practice
throughout Nevada, if these designations do not match, new projects cannot be approved or a condition
of approval must be placed on the project that a Master Plan Amendment occur.

Once Staff began looking more closely at this area of town, it was discovered that many parcels
surrounding W. Cedar Street/D Street/E Street have conflicting zoning and Master Plan designations.

EXISTING CONDITIONS

As seen on the map below, the parcels in questions are zoned General Commercial. Surrounding
properties to the west and south are also zoned General Commercial while parcels to the north and east
are designated as Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 2 of 13

There are currently a mix of uses in the neighborhood. The six parcels in question include a hotel, retail
store, two professional offices, a car wash, and auto repair.  The existing zoning districts make sense for
this neighborhood and are not proposed to change.

The map below shows the existing Master Plan Designations for the same neighborhood. The properties
surrounding the six parcels in question are designated either Commercial General or Residential
Medium Density.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 3 of 13

PROPOSED CHANGES

In order to clean up the discrepancies between the Master Plan designations and Zoning districts of
these six parcels, multiple changes are needed.  These are outlined below:

APN Use Current Zoning Current
Master Plan

Proposed
Master Plan

001-132-003 Professional Office General
Commercial

Residential Medium
Density

Commercial
General

001-132-006 Auto Repair General
Commercial

Residential Medium
Density

Commercial
General

001-132-007 Car Wash General
Commercial

Residential Medium
Density

Commercial
General

001-143-001 Professional Office General
Commercial

Residential Medium
Density

Commercial
General

001-144-002 Retail Store General
Commercial

Residential Medium
Density

Commercial
General

001-144-004 Hotel General
Commercial

Residential Medium
Density

Commercial
General

The map below shows the proposed changes to the Master Plan designation of each parcel.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 4 of 13

These changes will bring these parcels into compliance between their existing zoning districts and the
proposed land use designations.

JUSTIFICATION

The City of Elko has not adopted findings to be met by Master Plan Amendments.  However, other
jurisdictions throughout Nevada use some variation of the following findings when reviewing Master
Plan Amendments.  These are useful when considering the proposed changes.

1. The amendment/project will provide for orderly physical growth of the City, enhance the urban
core, and foster safe, convenient, and walkable neighborhoods and shopping districts.

Creating consistency between zoning and Master Plan designations aides in the growth of the
City by keeping the intended use of these parcels clear for future development.  Inconsistencies
create confusion and delay projects, which can ultimately keep somebody from building on a
parcel.

2. The amendment/project conforms to the adopted population plan and ensures an adequate
supply of housing, including affordable housing.

The proposed change does not have a significant impact on housing or population because the
parcels under consideration for this change are currently being used for commercial uses.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 5 of 13

3. There has been a change in the area or conditions on which the current designation was based
which warrants the amendment.

No change has occurred.  The amendment is warranted simply as a means to create consistency
between the zoning and land use categories.

4. The density and intensity of the proposed Master Plan Amendment is sensitive to the existing
land uses and is compatible with the existing adjacent land use designations.

The uses and density permitted under the new Master Plan designations does not change
because the Master Plan is being changed to match the existing uses on the parcels.

5. There are, or are planned to be, adequate transportation, recreation, utility, and other facilities
to accommodate the uses and density permitted by the proposed Master Plan designation.

The proposed change to the Master Plan designations does not increase the need for facilities
such as transportation, recreation, and utilities.  With the exception of some street
improvements, all facilities are already in place to serve this area.

6. The proposed change is in substantial conformance with the goals and policies of the Master
Plan and other adopted plans and policies.

The proposed changes to each property’s Master Plan designation is in substantial conformance
with the following objective:

 Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the
needs of the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

In addition, the proposed amendment conforms with all other adopted plans and policies within
the City of Elko.

PROPOSED CHANGE #2

BACKGROUND

The City of Elko recently sold a piece of City property to Anthem Broadband of Nevada located on Front
Street just west of 5th Street.  During the review process of PM 7-20, which created the parcel to be sold,
it was discovered that the current zoning of the property (Public/Quasi Public) and Master Plan
designation (Parks and Open Space) do not allow for the proposed utility facility. An amendment to the
zoning designation from Public/Quasi Public to Light Industrial is scheduled for City Council
consideration on November 10, 2020.

A Master Plan Amendment is needed to create conformity between the zoning and Master Plan
designations, as required by the City’s Master Plan. As a general practice throughout Nevada, if these
designations do not match, new projects cannot be approved or a condition of approval must be placed
on the project that a Master Plan Amendment occur. A condition of approval was added to Parcel Map
7-20 requiring the proposed Master Plan Amendment, which was approved by the City Council.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 6 of 13

EXISTING CONDITIONS

As seen on the map below, the parcel in question is currently zoned Public/Quasi-Public, as are the
surrounding properties to the west and north. The adjacent parcel to the west is zoned General
Industrial and the parcel across Front Street to the south is zoned General Commercial.

There are currently a mix of uses in the neighborhood.  The parcel in question is vacant, but is used as a
parking area for the HARP Trail. Other surrounding uses include warehouse, RV/Mobile Home Park, and
other vacant properties. The existing zoning districts make sense for this neighborhood and are not
proposed to change.

The map below shows the existing Master Plan Designations for the same neighborhood. The newly
created parcel is currently designated Parks and Open Space. The properties surrounding the parcel in
question are designated Parks and Open Space, Industrial General, Residential Medium Density, and
Mixed-Use Neighborhood.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 7 of 13

PROPOSED CHANGES

The map below shows the proposed change to the Master Plan designation.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 8 of 13

This change will bring the parcel into compliance between its existing zoning district and the proposed
land use designation.

JUSTIFICATION

The City of Elko has not adopted findings to be met by Master Plan Amendments.  However, other
jurisdictions throughout Nevada use some variation of the following findings when reviewing Master
Plan Amendments.  These are useful when considering the proposed changes.

1. The amendment/project will provide for orderly physical growth of the City, enhance the urban
core, and foster safe, convenient, and walkable neighborhoods and shopping districts.

Creating consistency between zoning and Master Plan designations aides in the growth of the
City by keeping the intended use of these parcels clear for future development.  Inconsistencies
create confusion and delay projects, which can ultimately keep somebody from building on a
parcel.

2. The amendment/project conforms to the adopted population plan and ensures an adequate
supply of housing, including affordable housing.

The proposed change does not have a significant impact on housing or population because the
parcel under consideration for this change is currently vacant. The parcel is not an ideal location
for any new residential development because of the industrial zoning.  In addition, a portion of
the parcel falls within a designated FEMA flood area.  The requirements to provide safe housing
in this area would pose some significant hurdles to residential development on this parcel.

3. There has been a change in the area or conditions on which the current designation was based
which warrants the amendment.

No change has occurred.  The amendment is warranted simply as a means to create consistency
between the zoning and land use categories.

4. The density and intensity of the proposed Master Plan Amendment is sensitive to the existing
land uses and is compatible with the existing adjacent land use designations.

The uses and density permitted under the new Master Plan designations does not significantly
change.  The proposed Industrial designation is compatible with the existing land uses and land
use designations of surrounding parcels.

5. There are, or are planned to be, adequate transportation, recreation, utility, and other facilities
to accommodate the uses and density permitted by the proposed Master Plan designation.

The proposed change to the Master Plan designations does not increase the need for facilities
such as transportation, recreation, and utilities.  With the exception of some street
improvements, all facilities are already in place to serve this area.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 9 of 13

6. The proposed change is in substantial conformance with the goals and policies of the Master
Plan and other adopted plans and policies.

The proposed change to the property’s Master Plan designation is in substantial conformance
with the following objective(s):

 Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where
appropriate, to promote economic sustainability and strengthen the community’s
image.

 Objective 8:  Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-
wide natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands,
drainages, floodplains, etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

In addition, the proposed amendment conforms with all other adopted plans and policies within
the City of Elko.

PROPOSED CHANGE #3

BACKGROUND

This property was recently sold and discussions have begun for development of the land.  While
assisting the new owner with their due diligence, it was discovered that the current Commercial
Transitional zoning is not consistent with the Residential High Density Master Plan designation.  In
addition, a deed restriction was recorded on the property restricting the uses allowed on this parcel,
specifically not allowing high-density residential.  Therefore, the current Residential High Density
designation violates this deed restriction.

A Master Plan Amendment was determined to be needed because the Master Plan requires that the
zoning of individual parcels conform with the Master Plan land use designation.  As a general practice
throughout Nevada, if these designations do not match, new projects cannot be approved or a condition
of approval must be placed on the project that a Master Plan Amendment occur.

Therefore, Staff determined that a Master Plan Amendment is required for consistency and compliance
with the deed restriction prior to the approval of the proposed use.

EXISTING CONDITIONS

As seen on the map below, the parcel in question is zoned Commercial Transitional.  The zoning on
surrounding properties includes Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential to the north, and
Public/Quasi-Public on the south, west, and east.  Tribal land can be found to the northeast and a small
amount of General Commercial is located to the southwest across College Parkway.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 10 of 13

The map below shows the existing Master Plan designations for the same neighborhood. The property
in question is designated Residential High Density. Similar to the existing zoning designations, current
Master Plan designations include Residential Medium Density to the north, Parks and Open Space to the
west, and Public to the south and east.  A small area of Commercial Highway is found to the southwest
across College Parkway.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 11 of 13

PROPOSED CHANGES

The map below shows the proposed change to the Master Plan designation of the subject parcel to
Commercial General.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 12 of 13

JUSTIFICATION

The City of Elko has not adopted findings to be met by Master Plan Amendments.  However, other
jurisdictions throughout Nevada use some variation of the following findings when reviewing Master
Plan Amendments.  These are useful when considering the proposed changes.

1. The amendment/project will provide for orderly physical growth of the City, enhance the urban
core, and foster safe, convenient, and walkable neighborhoods and shopping districts.

Creating consistency between zoning and Master Plan designations aides in the growth of the
City by keeping the intended use of these parcels clear for future development.  Inconsistencies
create confusion and delay projects, which can ultimately keep somebody from building on a
parcel.

2. The amendment/project conforms to the adopted population plan and ensures an adequate
supply of housing, including affordable housing.

The change from Residential – High Density to Commercial General does not significantly reduce
the amount of land available for residential use. The parcel has historically been considered
commercial despite its current land use designation.  In addition, the current zoning would only
allow for high density residential, which has since been determined infeasible due to the
recorded deed restriction.



Master Plan Amendment 3-20

Page 13 of 13

3. There has been a change in the area or conditions on which the current designation was based
which warrants the amendment.

No change has occurred.  The amendment is warranted simply as a means to create consistency
between the zoning and land use categories.

4. The density and intensity of the proposed Master Plan Amendment is sensitive to the existing
land uses and is compatible with the existing adjacent land use designations.

Overall, the proposed amendment is compatible with existing adjacent land use designations.
The proposed change is needed to clean up inconsistencies with zoning and deed restrictions
and does not fundamentally change the type of uses envisioned for this property.  In addition,
there are existing commercial properties on the opposite side of College Parkway.

5. There are, or are planned to be, adequate transportation, recreation, utility, and other facilities
to accommodate the uses and density permitted by the proposed Master Plan designation.

Curb, gutter, and sidewalk is already in place along both street frontages.  Water mains are in
place in both College Parkway and Ruby Vista Drive.  When the parcel develops, any missing
public improvements will be required, including the extension of sewer lines.

6. The proposed change is in substantial conformance with the goals and policies of the Master
Plan and other adopted plans and policies.

The proposed changes to each property’s Master Plan designation is in substantial conformance
with the following objective:

 Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the
needs of the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

In addition, the proposed amendment conforms with all other adopted plans and policies within
the City of Elko.



Agenda Item # I.A.4.  

Created on 10/23/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to set regular meeting dates as well 

as special meeting dates for 2020, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  November 3, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS- MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The following dates are the first Tuesday of each month: 
January 5, 2021 

February 2, 2021 

March 2, 2021 

April 6, 2021 

May 4, 2021 

June 1, 2021 

July 6, 2021 

August 3, 2021  

September 7, 2021 

October 5, 2021 

November 2, 2021 

December 7, 2021 

 
6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 
7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Planning Commission 

 
9. Findings: 

 
10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 
11. Agenda Distribution:  




































	11-03-20 Agenda.pdf (p.1-4)
	DRAFT 10-06-2020 Minutes.pdf (p.5-8)
	Item I.A.1. New Business - FM 8-20 Tower Hills Ph. 4.pdf (p.9-38)
	Item I.A.2. New Business - Petitions - VAC 4-20 Grace Baptist Church.pdf (p.39-62)
	Item I.A.3. New Business - Misc - Initiate Master Plan Amendment 3-20.pdf (p.63-77)
	Item I.A.4. New Business  - Meeting dates.pdf (p.78-79)
	Zoning Bulletin - 09-25-20.pdf (p.80-87)
	Zoning Bulletin - 10-10-20.pdf (p.88-95)

